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REPORT ON APRIL MEETING (10.04.2019)  

A slight botanical theme was noted by the President on opening the April meeting.                 

Greg called for expressions of interest to attend the excursion to Fairlight Antiques at Walla Walla 

on 13 April. A letter to the editor published in the Border Mail was noted where the Albury 

LibraryMuseum had been described in a travel supplement as a òsmall gemó and a òhidden 

treasureó alongside some international boutique museums. 

There was a request from Emma Williams to the Society for volunteers to greet and engage 

visitors at the Da Vinci Machine exhibition which is currently open at the LibraryMuseum.             

Knowledge of Da Vinci is not a prerequisite as training will be provided.  

Please contact Bianca Edwards if you are interested.  

 Since the 1840s, early colonial surveyors have blazed trees to mark out road and boundary 

alignments. As a form of living heritage, many blaze trees are now succumbing to the ravages  

of time. Peter Spooner from Charles Sturt University described his research where he used historic 

maps, field surveys and a citizen science approach to investigate our oldest roads and to 

document the numbers and condition of old blaze trees in the Albury region.  

David Armstrong, Team Leader of Parks and Recreation with Albury City Council, spoke about 

his role and some of the projects he has worked on and plans for our city over the next few 

years. Of special interest to members was the master plan for Monument Hill and the relocation 

of the historical plaques into purpose built alcoves. A link to this plan is provided on Page 8.  

Members were sad to hear that Vicky Cooper is leaving the Albury LibraryMuseum and taking up 

a new position at the Beechworth Burke Museum. Greg wished her all the best in her new role.  

The meeting closed after Joe provided his answer for Question of the Month.  

Sketch of a surveyor's team of the 1860s. The surveyor is shown looking through what 

appears to be a circumferentor, notebook in hand. A second man is shown holding a 

surveyor's chain (66 feet), divided into 100 links. Two assistants are shown, one with axe in 

hand 'blazing' a boundary tree (Gill 1865; National Library of Australia).   
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HISTORIC ROADS AND BLAZE TREES IN THE ALBURY REGION                                          PETER SPOONER 

The patterns that we observe along our country roads are a legacy of 

past land use decisions dating back many years ago. Some roads and 

stock routes developed from previous indigenous pathways and tracks 

dating back tens of thousands of years. Parts of the routes taken by our 

first explorers, Thomas Mitchell and Hume and Hovell have literally         

become todays roads. Indigenous pathways invoke a lot of imagery, 

what are they and can we see them? There were no maps as such but 

they had song and language and they passed down stories of how they 

travelled around the landscape which they knew intimately.                

There were tangible ways of marking tracks using totem items and       

engraving rocks and trees. Some were burnt regularly to keep them 

clear of scrub. The pathways linked food areas, water holes and trading 

resources such as red ochre. Well trodden routes often followed rivers or 

ridge lines. Semi -nomadic people would have left their mark. Most early explorers knew it was 

common sense to take an indigenous guide with them. The Hume Highway of today follows the 

explorers route in many places but actually in the early days people travelled to Howlong to 

cross the river where Thomas Mitchell had crossed. The Hume Highway, Gundagai to Port Phillip 

Rd or the Great Southern Rd as it was called was first surveyed in 1838, not long after the        

Overlanders who moved large mobs of stock through into Victoria and across to Adelaide.                                    

Many sections of the Hume are still the original road, you can still identify the old sections by     

observing the lines of big old trees. Early legislation was passed to stop the clearing of trees from 

roadsides. Trees were used as permanent survey markers and also assisted in keeping boggy   

sections of the roads dry.                                                                                                                                                     

By the end of the 1840s early squatters had taken up much of Southern NSW with large and often 

illegal runs of up to 100,000 acres. It was noted that 60 million acres were in the control of only 

1000 men. Tracks grew naturally to connect these runs with each other. Huge numbers of            

travelling stock were moving around as the squatters often had other properties in different      

localities. Legislation allowed people to move stock along a road half a mile either side, there 

were no fences. Imagine if you were a land holder and along came an overlander with a large 

mob that ate all your grass, you would not be very happy. So conflicts arose and some people 

started blocking roads to stop droving stock coming through. Government then ruled that you 

could only move stock on a declared road as opposed to a track. Finally the Government        

surveyed these tracks and they became our first roads with some became travelling stock routes. 

A lot of corruption and bribery occurred during these early surveys.         

As quickly as the use of stock routes in the Eastern areas developed, 

their use decreased due to drought and changing economic fortunes.        

The District Land Inspectors told Sydney, we donõt need them anymore, 

shrink them down. They were originally 3 chain wide. Some were           

subdivided off in the 1880s and 1890s. Land battles emerged in the 

1870s after the Robertson Land Acts. In came the smaller settlers or 

òcockysó as they were known as they scratched in their crops.             

Another layer of road development followed to service these small, 

mostly 640 acre (square mile) blocks which were split off the huge 

squatting runs. It was ruled that every block should have road access to 

a creek. There was so much going on in NSW at that time, a lot of ad 

hoc, out of control development. Surveyors couldn't keep up with it all. 

There were 8000 parishes to survey of about 20 square miles each.                                     

A blaze tree.                       

Photo: Peter Spooner  

Peter Spooner  
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HISTORIC ROADS AND BLAZE TREES IN THE ALBURY REGION                                        PETER SPOONER 

 

Each parish was meant to have a town, a church, a cemetery and a school. As in England the 

parishioners were meant to contribute towards road maintenance etc however due to the 

scale of Australia this never really happened. The surveyors had to work with basic tools, walking 

everywhere in very rough conditions. Many were really not qualified and mistakes were made. 

Government surveyors had the right to blaze an arrow on trees showing, hopefully, that they 

were more accurate. A Royal Commission was held around the 1860s when it was realised that 

the whole survey of NSW had been poorly done. Adams from Albury was one of the key          

surveyors who rectified the problems. They actually resurveyed and remapped areas on his    

insistence.                                                                                                                                              

Have you ever wondered why so many country roads have bad dog legs? It came about as     

areas were surveyed parish by parish, they couldnõt line things up using trig stations until later so 

often there was a discrepancy between the joins in the cadastral maps leading to roads being        

misaligned and having to dog leg to meet up! Also when the surveyors went up and down hills 

they didn't know how to allow for the longer distances involved, so errors accumulated.       

There is an unwritten rule for surveyors when working on old properties that the boundaries are 

assumed to be where the original fences are to avoid legal arguments. Many roads were      

impassable bogs in winter leading to diversions around wet areas adding to the rich mosaic of 

strange historical characteristics. Around 1900 local councils had to decide which designated 

roads shown on the maps would remain open or be shut down or not developed.                                              

Many paddock trees were used as survey reference trees, and were legally protected, not to 

be felled. These were colloquially known as 'blaze trees', marked by surveyors using an axe with 

a distinctive blaze to act as a permanent reference marker in delineating land corners and 

boundaries. Today a large majority of these trees have been lost due to age, fire or land      

clearing. They are sometimes difficult to find as the bark has grown over the blaze forming a 

mark known as a zipper. On an early crown map of the Sloaneõs property at Savernake there 

are details of vegetation patterns as well as the blaze trees marking the corners of the holding.                   

There is a reference letter or number for the tree  and details giving the bearing from the tree to 

the corner post and distances. After 150 years some of these trees are still in existence.             

We did a study using a citizens science approach of the area, asking for help in media releases 

and searching maps to find existing trees. We found some trees in National Parks. Most of the 81 

trees were in poor condition, especially the eucalypts. The pine trees were in better order.       

We believe that only about 1.5% of the original blaze trees have survived. We need to preserve 

some good specimens before they are all lost. Markings on these trees include a òTó which 

stands for a trig tree. A horseshoe shaped mark where the surveyors chain was pinned to the 

tree. A òBMó stands for a benchmark tree marked  when a survey was done between             

Burrumbuttock and Deniliquin between 1928 and 1932 to measure the rise and fall of the land 

for irrigation development. These trees were blazed every mile or less on a grid and the heights 

were recorded so it was known where the water would run. There was often a letter indicating 

the last name of the surveyor.  

Roads and roadsides in this area have important heritage values, not only in regard to their 

physical evidence but the intangible history in the stories of their past, linked to the explorers, 

the squatters, the farmers and the indigenous people. We need to preserve this history to be 

able to tell these stories to future generations.  

Notes taken from a recording of Peterõs presentation to the May Meeting. 
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THE HIDDEN HISTORY OF ALBURY          Presenter: Ken Helm AM  Winemaker/Director, Helm Wines  

(Given at the opening of the Cheers Exhibition at the Albury LibraryMuseum, 7 March.)  

Thank you to Victoria Cooper and the staff at the Albury LibraryMuseum and the Albury City 

Council for staging this important historical exhibition and inviting me to launch it.    

I am a descendant of John Peter Frauenfelder,  Georg Phillip Henri Helm married his eldest 

daughter Barbara Katharina in Germany before coming to Australia in 1854 on the ôVictoria.õ 

Gehrigõs are also long distant relatives of the Frauenfelders ð Georg Philipp Gehrig arrived in 

Australia via America on the ôMetropolisõ in 1855. On his arrival Gehrig purchased grapes and 

started making wine and the family has continued ever since. The Helm family have not had 

continuous vintages.  

On 12 May, 1851, a very wet day, three Germans with one of their sons walked into Albury.   

They had come from Kyeamba Station on the Hume Highway at the junction of the roads to 

Wagga Wagga and Tumbarumba. They came from Germany as bonded German migrants in 

1849 on a ship, the 'Beulahõ and had worked out their passage developing vineyards, for the 

previous two years. They met a land owner, Mr Crisp, at the northern end of Kiewa Street. They 

said òGuten tag, Wie gehtes, Wo wasser.ó Mr Crisp said òwható and they repeated. Then John 

Peter Frauenfelder who spoke English said òGooday, how are you. Where is the water?ó        

They had come from the Rhineland in German and heard a river as big as the Rhine flowed 

through Albury.  They may have been disappointed at the size of the Murray. However, they 

did call it òThe Rhine of Australiaó in future years. The three families of John Peter Frauenfelder, 

Sebastian Schubach and Heinrich Rau leased land from Mr Crisp in Kiewa Street. They then left 

John Peter Frauenfelderõs son John to mind the land and returned to Kyeamba to bring their 

families to Albury. On their arrival they built huts for the three families and began planting grape 

vines they had brought with them from Kyeamba. So began the Albury wine industry which 

would become the biggest in Australia over the next 20 years. Frauenfelder, Schubach and 

Rau also planted the first vines in Rutherglen in the 1850s for Lindsay Brown at Gooramadda  

Station. In 1881 they each had sizable vineyards at the northern end of Kiewa Street. Opposite 

Albury Council Chambers was Fallonõs extensive wine cellars, now the site of Quest Apartments. 

The next 10 years saw many Germans from the Rhineland in Germany arrive at the insistence of 

the first three.  Families (many descendants are still in Albury) arrived in Melbourne, and came 

to Albury eg Helm, Gehrig, Dallinger, Dick, Eisenhauer, Brumm, Eberle, Eck, Gaber, Reis, Klien, 

Mohr, Knobel, Kolb, Merkel, Muller, Schneider, Strauss, to name just a few. Many grew vineyards, 

and most were Catholic.  Alburyõs first newspaper first published in 1856 was printed partly in 

German due to the very large population who could not speak English.  

In 1860 the Murray Valley Vineyard Association was formed with a land grant of one square 

mile of land (Quickõs Hill) and John Frauenfelder Jr, was appointed vineyard manager in 1860.  

The venture had failed by 1867 and James T Fallon (the first mayor of Albury 1859 to 1862) with 

his brother Patrick E Fallon, purchased the company and rapidly expanded the vineyards, built 

huge cellars in Kiewa street (largest in the Southern Hemisphere) with a capacity of 300,000  

gallons (1.36 megalitres) and a processing winery at the vineyard adjacent to the railway line 

at Thurgoona. It became the biggest wine producing company in Australia. Murray Valley 

wines won awards and acclaim at Bordeaux and Vienna exhibitions in the 1880s.   

 

 

 

 

Fallon Cellars  

Kiewa St, Albury  

 

Australian  

Town & Country 

Journal  

1872 
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THE HIDDEN HISTORY OF ALBURY                                                                    

James Fallon travelled to London and presented papers on the wines and vines of Australia in 

1873 to The Society of Arts and to the Royal Colonial Institute in 1876 and established large      

markets in London. He then established wine warehouses in York Street in Sydney and Collins 

Street in Melbourne. When the railway line from Sydney reached Albury, a branch line was put 

into Fallonõs winery to transport his wines and those from other local wineries to Sydney.             

Fallon, a Member of the NSW Legislative Assembly, established the Port of Albury near the sports 

ground on the Murray River and purchased a paddle steamer the 'Cumberoonaõ and           

transported his wine to the Echuca railhead for transport to Melbourne and the world. He died 

unmarried in Manly on 26 May, 1886 and is buried in the Albury cemetery with his grave looking 

up Fallon Street to the land which once produced some of the wonderful wines of Murray Valley.  

In the 1886 census Albury had 60+ grape growers, about 1140 acres of vines compared with the 

Hunter Valley which had 800 acres.  Wineries like Murray Valley, St Hilaire, Ettamogah, Emu Park, 

Daysdale, Greer, Hillside were all well known wine producers.   

On 29 April, 1870 George Day, Mayor of Albury, commissioned three silver cups, which were    

presented to John Peter Frauenfelder, Sebastian Schubachõs wife, and Heinrich Rau in                

appreciation of their pioneering development of the now world acclaimed Albury Wine Industry. 

The three cups over the last 150 years have travelled all over Australia. The Schubach cup was 

found in Perth and was acquired by the Albury Museum. The Frauenfelder cup has been at the 

LibraryMuseum for many years. Two are on display at the exhibition. The Rau cup was thought to 

have been lost in a house fire, but I discovered it in Canberra with the great -granddaughter of 

Heinrich Rau. The Albury LibraryMuseum is currently hoping to acquire the Rau cup so that all 

three cups will be reunited on permanent display in the museum. James Fallon during his 1873 

visit to London employed Francois Gaston Leonce Frere a well -educated chemist/winemaker as 

manager for Murray Valley Vineyards. Leonce and family arrived in Albury in January 1875. He 

managed the winemaking at Murray Valley very successfully and was reputed to make the first 

Champagne ôsparklingõ wine in Australia. They even made altar wine for the local churches.  

Frere was followed by his brother Gustave, who in 1876 purchased land in Thurgoona on which  

St Hilaire was established. A substantial house, and winery was built, and 85 acres of vines             

established by 1890. St Hilaire became a major winery in the district with an international           

reputation and continued until 1946 ð the last of the early vineyards. Large concrete wine        

storage tanks and fermenting vats still exist, not far from the beautifully restored ôSt Hilaireõ house 

in Thurgoona. The Albury community is so lucky that Catherine OõNeil, the owner of ôSt Hilaire,õ 

has restored the house to its original beauty. It is tragic that the out -buildings (winery) were        

recently demolished before they could also be preserved. The large concrete wine storage 

tanks and vats near the house, are fenced to preserve them, but overgrown by scrub and        

neglected. The old Albury City logo bore a garland of vines and a paddle steamer, a reminder 

of Alburyõs rich wine history. The ôSt Hilaireõ restored house, its wine tanks ruins, the ruins of Murray 

Valley vats near the railway line in Thurgoona and the Ettamogah winery ruins are just a few    

remains of a wine industry of which Albury residents should be proud. 

I implore the Albury City Council to support Albury LibraryMuseum's 

efforts to acquire the Rau silver cup, so the complete set can be    

displayed at the Museum, preserve and maintain the St Hilaire and 

Murray Valley ruins, erect correct signage and promote them as a 

permanent reminder of the great Albury Wine Industry and the peo-

ple who made it. Albury should preserve and remember its history ð it 

will make you proud.    

Engraved on the body of the jug ' In recognition of the Enterprise of the late Sebastian       

Schubach of the Rosenberg Vineyard Albury as one of the pioneers of the vine culture and 

Wine making in the Valley of the Murray. This jug is by his friends presented to The                   

Representatives of his Family 29th April 1870"  

A memorable meeting was held to commemorate the establishment of the wine industry.  

Silver jugs, very handsomely engraved, were presented to Messrs. Henry Rau and Peter        

Frauenfelder, and the representatives of the late Mr Sebastian Schubach, the pioneer        

vignerons of Albury, and their health enthusiastically drunk in local wine. ....... The movement 

was supported by nearly all the vignerons on the Murray, within fifty miles, and was initiated by 

Messrs. Meyer and John Sanger of Wongamong."                Albury LibraryMuseum Collection  
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50 YEARS AGO     April 1969                                                                                                 Rich ard Lee  

Big crowds were expected for the Easter long weekend with 1000 people expected for the      

Australian National Pistol Championships, 800 at hockey, 650 for basketball, 500 for the bowls and 

250 attending the tennis. Accommodation was at a premium in the town. There was also a    

cricket grand final and a horse race meeting.  

The Hume Weir race car circuit was up and racing. All the big players would be there including 

Jim McKeown and the Repco Brabham teams. The car of the month was the Chrysler Pacer,   

noted in an article by Darryl Starr who wrote for the Border Mail for many years.  

Alburyõs Andy Tomich won the Australian Aggregate pistol shoot at the titles.                                    

Paul Jarvie was declared Albury Amateur Swim Club Champion.  

Local celebrity Rodney Vincent appeared on the Kevin Dennis ôNew Facesõ television show, 

ôNew Talent Timeõ and Graham Kennedyõs Show.  

The Minister for National Development, Mr Fairbairn (Member for Farrer) replied to a statement 

after a strong attack by the opposition leader, Mr Whitlam, on the Governments water             

conservation policy. Fairbairn defended the Snowy Mountains Authority and the Murray River 

Commission and said that a national water resources authority was unnecessary because ôthe 

States were perfectly able and competent.õ Whitlam had suggested a national water resources 

authority. Yet again old news is new news. We read in current newspapers that school students 

are striking over òClimate Change.ó School students were demonstrating in 1969. ôA sit in strike, 

over whatever.õ ôAn outrage.õ It appears that Albury students didnõt take part in the state wide 

strike.  

The hot topic for the month was ôValettaõ. This was the house that Doctor Cleaver Woods and his 

son owned in Swift Street and is now the site of the Performing Arts Centre.  

The Border Morning Mail described  Mr John Henwood, who lived in Sydney as the protest          

instigator. ôValettaõ had letters to the editor in almost every edition of the months paper.                  

ôItõs terrible.õ ôItõs shocking.õ õItõs heritage.õ ôIt should become the Art gallery,õ all sorts of letters.    

A petition was raised and 1000 signatures were obtained. The arguments stated that only         

ratepayers could sign such petitions. Mayor Ald. Bunton said òwe are being hoodwinked over this 

petition.ó                                                                                                                                                      

ôThe letter I was waiting for arrived;õ Sir- I suggest that Albury council give Valetta to Mr Henwood 

and his keen followers and for them to select and purchase land for themselves. If Captain 

Cookõs cottage was removed from England to Melbourne. Then this group should produce the 

dollars and remove the premises to the chosen site. The estimated 90 percent of people donõt 

want their money spent on an old house but a new town hall. Signed Old timer with a new      

outlook. Council signed Valettaõs fate on 23 April, 1969 and the Performing Arts Theatre opened 

in May 1972.  

Council laid a Turf wicket at Jelbart Park and Melrose Park was to have a concrete cricket       

wicket. Chemist hours on weekends were rostered, Wallaceõs Pharmacy was on duty for one of 

the weekends and the opening hours were from 6.30pm to 7.30pm on Sunday.  

òThe Blastó Fred from Lavington had a problem splitting wood at St Anneõs Primary School so he 

added a ônitro-pillõ to the log, this failed so he added a little more explosive. When the charge 

was detonated a piece of wood was thrown 200 yards into the neighbourõs yard and it mangled 

a wheel barrow. The owners of the barrow and the wife were standing nearby. Fragments were 

hurled in all directions. Fred was before court and said he had a little experience with explosives 

in Yugoslavia. The Judge fined him $50.                                                                                                

Car parking in Volt lane for off -street parking was purchased by Council from the Murray River 

County Council. Better not forget Ron Haberfield, he now delivered Orange juice with your Milk.                              

Lavington Sports Club, Alburyõs first fully licenced Sportsmanõs club opened on the site of the old 

Catholic Seminary in Lavington. The club membership was not just restricted to men.                                          

ANZAC day was commemorated with many photographs and a full list of those that marched. 

Madam Savickisõs opera school held a major event in conjunction with Miss Parryõs dancing 

school at the St Patrickõs Hall. Albury Chamber of Commerce was urged to give more support to 

the Floral Festival. Albury Botanical Gardens won the Riverina Municipal or Shire best gardens. 

They had won it on four previous occasions, the last in 1966 and the curator was Barry                

Dangerfield.  
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            https://www.facebook.com/Albury.DHS  

 

Visit our website for 

photos of old Albury, 

history articles and 

much more. Go to:  

https://

alburyhistory.org.au/  

PUMPHOUSE VISIT                                                                                                                          Saturday  11 MAY  

Narelle Vogel has generously offered to host a tour of the Waterworks Pumphouse on Saturday 

11 May. Please meet there at 2pm, the Pumphouse is located down the Waterworks Rd which 

becomes Boundary Rd.  

This will be a one off chance to see the Pumphouse in its original state before works commence 

to repurpose the building into an exciting creative arts space.                                                            

BYO thermos or cool drink and bring a plate to share afterwards. Weather permitting.  

Pump House Maker Space  

 This heritage listed building will be re -purposed into a Maker Space for artists, start -up businesses, 

do -it-yourself community, school groups and families offering equipment, skills and workshops 

across woodwork, metalwork, ceramics and printmaking. The current floor area of 280m2 will be 

extended by an additional 54.5m2 to allow for reception/entry, office space and toilet facilities. 

Once operational, the facility will become a financially sustainable enterprise through paid 

memberships. These memberships will allow access to the facility and equipment, plus a suite of 

educational programs catering for both school groups and individuals across the community.     

A small outdoor courtyard will be installed as a space for pop -up cafes, and pop -up events such 

as small markets, artist talks and networking functions.( Albury City Website.)

QUESTION OF THE MONTH FOR MAY In March 1930, òThe Blockó or Ritz Arcade, with 6 shops 

and   an upstairs ballroom were built.  Who was the owner, the architect and builder and  what 

was the original name of the ballroom ?                                                                                                                              

April Answer: After whom was Billsons Park named and when ?                                                        

The Park was named after Walter J Billson (former Albury Mayor) in October 1913.   

 

At the outbreak of World War I, 129 women were registered as medical 

practitioners in Australia, and many of them were eager to contribute 

their skills and expertise to the war effort. For the military establishment, 

however, the notion of women doctors serving on the battlefield was 

unthinkable. Undaunted, at least twenty -four Australian women doctors 

ignored official military policy and headed to the frontlines.   

This book explores the stories of the Australian women who served as 

surgeons, pathologists, anaesthetists and medical officers between 1914 

and 1919. Despite saving hundreds of lives, their experiences are almost 

totally absent from official military records, both in Australia and Great 

Britain, and many of their achievements have remained invisible for over 

a century. Until now.  Note this story includes Albury's Isabel Ormiston. 

Available at Dymocks.  

https://alburyhistory.org.au/
https://alburyhistory.org.au/
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Patron: Patricia Gould OAM  

Honorary Life Members:  

Howard Jones, Helen Livsey,  

June Shanahan, Jan Hunter.  

President: Greg Ryan  

Vice -President: Joe Wooding   

Secretary: Helen Livsey  

02 6021 3671 

Treasurer: Simon Burgess 

Minute Secretary: Jill Wooding  

Publicity Officer: Jill Wooding  

Public Officer: Helen Livsey  

Committee: Marion Taylor, Howard 

Jones, Chris de Vreeze, Bruce Pennay, 

Ray Gear  

Bulletin Editor: Marion Taylor 

marion.taylor7@bigpond.com  

Publications & Stock Officer: Ray Gear  

Bulletin dispatch: Richard Lee  

Meeting Greeter: Jill Wooding  

Web Editor: Greg Ryan  

Meetings : Second Wednesday of the 

month at 7.30 pm usually at the 

Commercial Club Albury.  

The Committee meets on the 

third Wednesday of the month 

at 3 pm at the Albury 

LibraryMuseum.  

ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION  

Single: $25 Family: $33 

Corporate: $100  

Note: There is a $10 surcharge 

for mailed Bulletins.  

Research undertaken, $25 first 

hour.  Enquiries in writing with 

$25  

Disclaimer:  

The Albury & District Historical Society Inc., and/or its members, through this newsletter, endeavours to 

provide accurate and reliable information, but does not warrant or make any representation regarding 

the accuracy or reliability of information contained within this newsletter.  

To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, the Society and/or its members shall not be liable for 

any damages of any kind relating to the use of this information, including without limitation, direct, 

indirect, special, compensatory or consequential damages, loss of profits or damage to property, even if 

the Society and/or its members have been advised of the possibility of such damages.  

Special thanks to the Commercial Club Albury Ltd for supplying a 

meeting room for many years and also for their continued support.  

Please click on the logo to access their website.  

A&DHS Corporate Sponsors  

 
Albury & District Historical Society receives generous support from the following sponsors.  

Please click on the logo to visit their respective websites.  
 

IT, Web & App Services  

 David Armstrong                      Team Leader Parks & Recreation  

As team leader David oversees 11 staff members at Albury 

City. He controls the strategic direction of sports -fields, park 

improvements, play spaces, environmental lands, Council 

buildings, changerooms/sports pavilions, public toilets, the   

Botanic Gardens, tree management, urban & public art and 

signage. Significant funding has been received from the       

Regional Growth, Environment & Tourism Fund and Stronger 

Country Communities Fund Round 1 & 2. The major projects 

being undertaken at the moment are the extension of the 

Wagirra Trail to the Wonga Wetlands where a new visitor      

education centre will be built. Construction of a new Australia Park car park area off Ebden St.      

Improvements to the Albury River Precinct to provide better access to the river with a board 

walk and floating pontoons. Council is working closely with the RSL to implement the Monument 

Hill master plan which involves upgrading the roadways, CCTV cameras, lighting, park fixtures, 

landscaping and installing18 commemorative alcoves with interactive plaques. To view the 

complete plan go to:  

https://eservice.alburycity.nsw.gov.au/ACCPublicDocs/DocumentViewer.aspx?DocID=1725662   

Other works have been undertaken at Noreuil Park on the playground, widening the trail,       

improving the irrigation system and installing new bike racks. At JC King Park a new sports         

pavilion has been built with support from the Albury Netball Association.  

https://www.commercialclubalbury.com.au/
http://lesterandson.com.au/
https://coxtech.com/
http://www.albury.kwikkopy.com.au/
http://www.alburycity.nsw.gov.au/
http://www.rotaryalburynorth.org.au/
http://www.bakermotors.com.au/
https://eservice.alburycity.nsw.gov.au/ACCPublicDocs/DocumentViewer.aspx?DocID=1725662

